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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of EON Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of EON Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2022, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian

. Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act .
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair I/{]\S‘S‘BE,\
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the ,/@“ /Ne
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the { ;_’
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Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

ey

HRSS
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022@‘,/"‘\0'};\ ;

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on Marfg’ U

oy

31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. \*
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

(g2) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person(s) / entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary has, whether directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(2) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
betief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) /
entity(ies),, including foreign entities, that the company has directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(3) Based on our audit procedures which we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances and according to the information and
explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
made by the Management under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the provisions of Section
197 of the Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable to the Company as it is a private
Company.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Nitin Manohar Jumani
Partner

Membership No.: 111700
UDIN: 22111700BBMJLX8621

Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EON HINJEWAD! INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31,2022

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

\\ . S V.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Nitin Manohar Jumani
Partner

Membership No.: 111700
UDIN: 22111700BBMJLX8621

Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022

RSSO,
T NN
j o © )
(= @)
1‘. * *ll
I"\. ) \r?'IJ
& &/
Ereq Acco>”

"

- )

S BRS AN
o WB30
- = C’

™,

bk

N,

)

{_{;"/ )

()

\

S

3

)

)
i=
1x

Ys) /
\% S/

; </
g pcces”

2t $3%

%

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: 751 22 6831 1600

Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune



MSKA & Associates b B e Nagar

Pune 411014, INDIA
Chartered Accountants Tel: +91 20 6763 3400

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EON HINJEWADI INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH
31,2022

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

i.
(@) A. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and the situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has no intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i)(a)(B)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) All the Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during
the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.
Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

ii.
(a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(b) During the year the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. However, no
quarterly returns / statements are required to be filed with such Banks/financial institutions by the
company.

iii.
(a) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has provided loans or provided
advances in the nature of loans, or given guarantees, or provided security to any other entity.

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Raitway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E}, Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(A) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiary,
joint ventures and associates are as follows:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Guarantees Security Loans Advances

Aggregate amount Nil Nil Nil
granted/provided
during the year

- Others

Nil

Balance Outstanding Nil Nil 5381.00
as at balance sheet |
date in respect of
above cases

- Others

Nil

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in relation to grant of all loans
and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees are not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

In the case of loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest have not been stipulated. In the absence of stipulation of repayment terms are
unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days in respect of the
loan granted to the Company.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of loan
granted has not fallen due during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loans/advances
in the nature of loans repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
The details of the same are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount of
loans/ advances in
nature of loans

- Repayable on
demand (A) 5381.00 94.00
- Agreement does
not specify any

terms or period of Nil Nil
repayment (B)

Total (A+B) 5381.00 94.00
Percentage of loans/ 100% 1.75%

advances in nature of
loans to the total
loans
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vi.

vii.

(@)

(b)

viii.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither, directly or
indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the director is
interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act nor made investments through
more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of
the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts outstanding which
are in the nature of deposits as on March 31, 2022 and the Company has not accepted any deposits
during the year.

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there is no previously unrecorded income which has
been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, money raised by way of
term loans during the year has been applied for the purpose for which it was raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from an
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associate.
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
associate. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

X.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not raise
any money by way of an initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b

—

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we report that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022,
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

xii. ~ The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv.
(@) Inour opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the period under audit.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to company.

Xvi.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without any
valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3
(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. [
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(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  Based on the overall review of standalone financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash
losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

xX.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the provisions
of section 135 of the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has made the required
contributions during the year and there are no unspent amounts which are required to be transferred
either to a Fund or to a Special Account as per the provisions of section 135 of the act read with
schedule VII. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xxi.  The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of the audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the
report.

ForMSKA & Agso iates
Chartered Accou
ICAI Firm Registrafion Mo. 105047W

o

NitilY Mariohar Jumani
Partnef

Membership No.: 111700
UDIN: 22111700BBMJLX8621

Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF EON HINJEWADI INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of EON Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private
Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of EON
Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal
control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl) (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

I o
G
e nccos

Nitin Manohar Jumani
Partner
Membership No.: 111700

UDIN: 22111700BBMJLX8621

Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022
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Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022

{All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,762.63 4,046.22
Capital work-in-progress 3 - -
Investment property 4 3,087.28 3,196.14
Intangible assets 5 - -
Investment in associate [ 2,500.00 2,500.00
Financial assets
Other financial assets 8 217.68 204.46
Income tax assets (net) 9 388.93 222.99
Other non-current assets 11 8.42 9.69
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 183.98 213.09
10,148.92 10,392.59
Current assets
Inventories 12 37.63 35.77
Financial assets
Investments 6 70.01 580.38
Loans 7 5,381.00 5,575.00
Trade receivables 13 152.44 115.20
Cash and cash equivalents 14 460.11 171.31
Other financial assets 8 4,219.58 3,711.65
Other current assets 11 254.90 118.19
10,575.67 10,307.50
TOTAL 20,724.59 20,700.09
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,020.40 1,020.40
Other equity 16 8,717.43 8,485.27
9,737.83 9,505.67
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 8,280.25 8,739.27
Other financial liabilities 18 56.24 5.89
Deferred revenue 21 19.47 -
Provisions 22 25.82 19.41
8,381.78 8,764.57
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1182.01 962.09
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 19 12,14 50.26
enterprises
_Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro 19 869.00 761.34
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 18 401.06 570.44
Other current liabilities 20 129.46 77.67
Deferred revenue 21 5.10 3.44
Provisions 22 6.20 4.61
2,604.97 2,429.85
TOTAL 20,724.59 20,700.09
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For M S K A and Associa For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountant Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
ICAI Firm registratio .:105047W CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080 ) /\/
o /S D
§/ | AW

Nitin San

ohjr]'umani
Partner

Membership No. 111700
Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022

Atul Chordia
Director

DIN: 00054998
Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022

f
% Chordia
Director
DIN: 00054123
Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022

Ganesh Nanaware
Company Secretary
Membership No: A56381
Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
tncome
Revenue from operations 23 2,604.26 1,590.65
Other income 24 608.89 751.55
Total income (1) 3,213.15 2,342.20
Expenses
Cost of sales 25 209.13 111.12
Employee benefits expense 26 559.64 381.33
Other expenses 27 967.63 868.45
Total expenses (I1) 1,736.40 1,360.90
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 1,476.75 981.30
{EBITDA) (1) - (11)
Finance costs 29 780.81 807.34
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 434.69 484.27
1,215.50 1,291.61
Profit before tax 261.25 (310.31)
Tax expenses:
Deferred tax 29.10 (42.13)
Total tax expenses 29.10 (42.13)
Profit for the year 232.15 (268.18)
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods :
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 0.02 13.31
Deferred tax effect {0.01) (3.35)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit 0.01 9.96
or loss in subsequent periods {net of tax)
Tota! comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 232.16 (258.22)
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share Rs. 10 {March
31, 2021: Rs. 10)]
Basic and diluted 30 2.28 (2.53)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For MSKA and Associatea For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm registratio CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080

Chartered Accountants Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
1050M ~

N,
\
= |
Nitin @oha;-ﬁimani ' Atul Chordia
Partner / Director
Membership No. 111700 DIN: 00054998
Place: Pune Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022 Date: September 30, 2022

/
agarChordia
Director
DIN: 00054123
Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022

Gartesh Nanaware
Company Secretary
Membership No: A56381
Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022




Eon Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 261.25 (310.31)
Depreciation and amortisation 436,17 484.27
Profit on sale of investment (8.56) (0.41)
Provision for doubtful receivables and advances 0.83 -
Profit on sale of fixed assets - (3.50)
Loss on property, plant and equipment discarded . 0.16
Interest expenses 776.70 803.04
Interest income (572.22) {706.89)
Operating profit before working capital changes 894.17 266.36
Movements in working capital :
{increase) / decrease in inventories (1.86) 8.08
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (38.07) 18.11
(Increase) / decrease in loans 194.00 225.00
(Increase) / decrease in other assets (135.44) 138.38
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (120.06) 84.10
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 8.02 {5.37)
Increase / {decrease) in trade payables 69.53 103.35
Increase / (decrease) in deferred revenue 21.13 (4.90)
Increase / {decrease) in other liabilities 51.79 5.99
Cash generated from operations 943.21 839.10
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (165.95) (172.84)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 777.27 666.27
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (43.74) (32.61)
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 18.65
Proceeds on redemption / sale of investment in units of mutual funds 1,358.93 20.02
Purchase of investment in units of mutual funds {839.96) (600.00)
Movement in fixed deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12 months {13.22) 51.20
Movement in fixed deposits having remaining maturity of less than 12 months - 119.23
Interest received 64.29 68.66
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) 526.30 {354.85)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings (459.02) 202.64
Repayments of borrowings 219.92 31.35
Interest paid (775.67) (811.69)
Net cash flow used in financing activities ('C) {(1,014.77) (577.70)
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + 8 + C) 288.80 {266.29)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 171.31 437.5975
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 460.11 171.31
Components of cash and cash equivalents as at As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Cash on hand 2.28 2.65
Balances with banks:

- on current accounts 385.63 86.37

— Deposits 72.20 82,29

Less: Bank overdraft (note 18) - -
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 14) 460.11 171.31

For M S K A and Associate
Chartered Accountants

4 ol /
Nitin Iﬁ)har,}ﬁmam \? S /_,
Partner / N /;
Membership No. 111700 ——
Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080

Atul Chordia

Director

DIN: 00054998

Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022

Sagarchordia

" Director

DIN: 00054123
Place: Pune
Date: September 30, 2022

74 f}
_Gjnesh Wénaware

Cdmpany Secretary
Membership No: A56381
Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up No. of shares {in lacs) Amount

As at April 1, 2020 102.04 1,020.40
As at March 31, 2021 102.04 1,020.40
As at March 31, 2022 102.04 1,020.40
B. Other equity

Attributable to the equity holders
Securities premium Retained earnings Total

Balance as at April 01, 2020 6,471.98 2,271.51 8,743.49
Profit for the year - -268.18 -268.18
Other comprehensive income - 9.96 9.96
Total comprehensive income - -258.22 -258.22
Balance as at March 31, 2021 6,471.98 2,013.29 8,485.27
Profit for the year - 232.15 232.15
Other comprehensive income - 0.01 0.01
Total comprehensive income - 232.16 232.16
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6,471.98 2,245.45 8,717.43

As per our report of even date

For M S K A and Associat
Chartered Accountant
ICAI Firm Registratio
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Nitin Wgariohas Jumani Gy e S/

Partner : \“*H‘.___.//

Membership no. 111700

Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080

Atul Chordia

Director

DIN: 00054998

Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022

- MOrdia

Director
DIN: 00054123

Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022

%sh Nanaware

/l@?

Company Secretary
Membership No: A56381
Place: Pune

Date: September 30, 2022




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1. Corporate Information

Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited-(“the Company”) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956. The Company is engaged in the business of hotel operations and real estate development and sale.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on
September 30, 2022.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1  Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 {as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule 111), as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which have been measured at fair value or revalued
amount at the end of each reporting period, as explained under accounting policy 2.3.

The financials statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to nearest lacs('00,000) except when otherwise indicated.

2,2 Current versus non-current
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified as a current asset when it is either:

- Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

A liability is classified as a current liability when either:

- Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets/ {liabilities) are classified as non-current assets / (liabilities).

The Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent. The Company has identified twelve
months as its operating cycle.

2.3 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as non-current and current investments, at fair value, at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.



Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial information are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

- Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unabservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial information at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value.
- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
- Financial instruments {including those carried at amortized cost)

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as non-current assets held for sale.

External valuation experts are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuation experts is decided upon annually by the
management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

24  Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless when
the payment is received on transfer of control of the goods or services to the customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

(i) Hotel Operations

Rooms, Food, Beverage and other allied hotel services including banquet services:

Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet
services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the
customer.

In relation to other allied hotel services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered.

{ii) Rendering of services

Rental income from investment property:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to
the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Maintenance and service charges
Maintenance and service charges arising from operating leases are recognised as and when the services are rendered. The Company collects goods and service tax on

behalf of the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Other operating revenue

Other operating revenue arising from operating lease is recognized as and when the services are rendered and are shown net of expenses i.e. electricity expenses.



Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(iii) Sale of construction material and interior fit-outs

Revenue from sale of construction materials and interior fit-outs is recognized when control of the goods have been transferred to the customer.

The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are
excluded from revenue.

(iv) Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount (like volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc.), the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for rendering the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The estimate of variable consideration for expected future volume rebates/incentives, cash
discounts etc. are made on the most likely amount method. Revenue is disclosed net of such amounts.

Contract balances

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policy no. 2.16 Financial instruments — Financial assets at amortised cost.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company renders services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.5  Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (‘INR’}, which is its functional currency.
2.5.1 Transactions and balances

Initial recognition: Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

2.5.2 Translation and exchange differences

Monetary items: Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at their respective functional currency exchange rate prevailing at
the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items: Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial
recognition. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive income {'OCI') or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).



Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
2.6 Taxes

2.6.1 Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities; on the basis of the taxable
profits computed for the current accounting peried in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates used to compute the amount is the effective tax rate
applicable to the Company for the period.

Current income tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity,
respectively, and not in the Profit or Loss. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

2.6.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax fiability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, when the t|m|ng of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not z
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets ar
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.7  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment iosses, if any. Cost
comprises of purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and borrowing costs, if the recognition
criteria are met.

The cost also include initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade discount or rebate are deducted in arriving at purchase price.
Such cost include the cost of replacing parts of property, plant and equipment.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals; the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and eguipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

CWIP comprises of cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for intended use as at balance sheet date.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at, based on the management's estimated useful lives. The identified components are
depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the following
useful lives to provide depreciation on is property, plant and equipment.



Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Useful lives estimated by | Useful lives estimated by .
Asset description the Management (years) - | the Management (years) - Usefullife as per Schedule I
Hotel IT Park {years)

Building 30 NA 60
Plant and machinery 13 20 15
Electrical installations 13 20 10
Furniture and fixtures 10 15 08--10
Office equipment 13 20 5
Computers 6 6 6
Vebhicles 10 10 10

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the assets over estimated useful lives which are
different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The management undertakes a review of the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period and adjustments are made whenever necessary.

2.8 . Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the
investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property on written down value basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase.
Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are

determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International
Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in Statement of profit and loss
in the period of derecognition.

2,9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company amortized intangible assets over their estimated useful life i.e. over its license period i.e. 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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2.10 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

2.10.1 Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

2.11 Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.12 Inventories

Inventory of food, beverages and tobacco are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Cost
include cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other than refundable), inward freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. in determining the fair value less costs to disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash
generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-
term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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2.15 Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method as per payment of gratuity act, 1972.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- the date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income

Provision for compensated absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost

of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-
term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company recognises the
entire changes in the obligation, including remeasurements in the statement of profit and loss for the year. The Company presents the entire leave as a current
liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

2.16 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

2.16.1 Financial assets
Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income {‘FVTOCI') or fair
value through profit or loss {'FVTPL’).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not classified as fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL'), transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in statement
of profit or loss. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognised using trade date or settlement date accounting.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

a) At amortised cost
b) At fair value through profit or loss {‘FVTPL’)



Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{a) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amoun
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {‘EIR’) method, less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance expense/ (income) in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Company.

{b) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

A Financial asset shall be measured at FVTPL, unless it is measured at amortised cost . The Company classifies all equity or puttable financial instruments held for
trading as measured at FVTPL. Such instruments are measured at fair value at initial recognition as well as at each reporting date. The fair value changes are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss eg mutual fund. Further, the Company may make an irrevocable election to designate a financial asset as FVTPL, at
initial recognition, to reduce or eliminate a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

Equity investments
Investment in equity shares of associates have been measured at cost less impairment allowance as per Ind AS 27.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 maonths after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (EIR). When estimating the cash fliows, an entity is required to consider all
contractual terms of the financial instrument over the expected life of the financial instrument.

The Company estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date:

Particulars Not due Within 120 days* More than 120 days*
ECL Rate 0% 0% 100%

* Provision is made for receivables where recovery is considered doubtful irrespective of due date. Where an amount is outstanding for more than 120 days the
Company usually provides for the same unless there is clear visibility of recovery.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:
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Financial assets measured at amortised cost, revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments based on shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
failitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The impairment loss/ (gain) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for impairment lass/ (gain) on financial assets measured at FVOC, which shall be
recognised in the OCI.

2.16.2 Financial liabilities
Classification
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through profit or loss (‘'FVTPL).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of, in the case of financial liabilities not classified as fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction
costs that are attributable to the issue of the financiat liability. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL .
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated

embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition, if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
EVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the statement of
profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or foss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the

statement of profit and loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. After
initial recognition, these instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and

loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss.

2.16.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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In the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as defined above net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered as integral part of the Company’s cash management.

2.18 Cash dividend distribution to equity holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distribution to its equity shareholders in form of dividend, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is
no longer at the Company’s discretion. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders in the
general meeting. The Company accordingly recognises dividend after it is approved in the shareholders’ meeting. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in
equity.

2.19 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of a company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker (CODM) to

make decisions about resource allocation and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company has identified the Board
of Directors of the Company as its CODM.

2.20 Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company.

A contingent liability can arise for obligations that are possible, but it is yet to be confirmed whether there is present obligation that could lead to an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits.

The Company also discloses contingent liability when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but only makes disclosures for the same in the financial information.
2.21 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.22 Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of statement of profit
and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation
and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

Note 2A: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial information requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,

expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial information:
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Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the
asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the lease contracts as operating leases.

Classification of assets as property, plant and equipment and investment property

The Company has entered into commercial leasing of one of its asset. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic fife of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that the change in
use of the asset is short term in nature. Also, the Company does not intend to hold this asset for capital appreciation or to earn rental income on a long term basis.
Hence the asset is continued to be classified under property, plant and equipment.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the Company’s control. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they accur.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2020 is
included in the following notes -

a) Defined benefit plans {gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Note 2B: Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 116 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below:

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in March 2020, but do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. The
Company has not adopted for early adoption of any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

A. New Standard
i) Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind
AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease). The standard sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 generally does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the full retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on April 1, 2019, The Company elected to use
the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at April 1,2019. Instead, the Company applied the standard only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application.

Lease income from operating leases (Lessor accounting): Ind AS 17 did not mandate straight-lining of lease escalation, if they are in line with the expected general
inflation compensating the lessor for expected inflationary cost. No refief under Ind AS 116 like Ind AS 17 from straight lining of Jease rentals, so a lessor is required to
recognize lease payments from operating leases as income on either a straight-line basis or another systematic basis.
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The effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 is disclosed in note 39.

B. Other Amended Standards licable to the Company

Lot o

i} Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The appendix specifically addresses the following:

* Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

* The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

¢ How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates

* How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach
that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. In determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, an entity
might consider, for example, (a) how it prepares its income tax filings and supports tax treatments; or (b) how the entity expects the taxation authority to make its
examination and resolve issues that might arise from that examination.

The amendment does not have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

ii) Amendments to Ind AS 12: Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits
than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity
according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019,

The amendment does not have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

iii) Amendments to Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the
activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those
amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019,

The amendment does not have any impact on the Company's financial statements.
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Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 - Investment property as at March 31, 2022

Freehold land Freehold Total
Buildings
Gross block
Opening 843.34 2,905.37 3,748.71
Additions - 20.78 20.78
Disposals - i il
Closing balance 843.34 2,926.15 3,769.49
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening - 552.57 552.57
Charge for the year - 129.64 129.64
Disposals - - -
Closing balance - 682.21 682.21
Net Block 843.34 2,243.94 3,087.28
Investment property as at March 31, 2021
Freehold land Freehold Total
Buildings
Gross block
Opening 843.34 2,905.37 3,748.71
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Closing balance 843.34 2,905.37 3,748.71
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening - 420.69 420.69
Charge for the year - 131.88 131.88
Disposals - - -
Closing balance - 552.57 552.57
Net Block 843.34 2,352.80 3,196.14
Information regarding income and expenditure of investment property
Yearended  Year ended March
March 31, 2022 31, 2021
Rental income derived from investment property 979.67 1,091.80
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income 54.09 101.57
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental - -
income
Profit arising from investment property before depreciation 925.58 990.23
and indirect expenses
Less : Depreciation 129.64 131.88
Profit arising from investment property before indirect expenses 795.94 858.35




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of fair value of the Investment properties are as under

Land Building Total
Balance as at April 1, 2020 6,982.00 4,867.00 11,849.00
Fair value movement for the year 70.00 66.00 136.00
Balance as at March 31, 2021 7,052.00 4,933.00 11,985.00
Fair value movement for the year 271.00 209.00 480.00
Balance as at March 31, 2022 7,323.00 5,142.00 12,465.00
Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to investment properties :
Particulars Valuation Significant Range (weighted average)
unobservable March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Land Market Method Rate adopted per Rs. 5,400 Rs. 5,200
sft.
Building Market Method Rate adopted per  Rs. 2,500-3,100 Rs. 2,400-2,900

sft.

Description of valuation method

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Thite Valuers & Engineers Pvt. Ltd., an accredited independent and Government certified valuer
vide report dated 20th of June 2022 which is in compliance with rule 2 of the Companies (Registred valuers and valuation) Rules, 2017. The valuation was
conducted through a market rate approach. Under this approach the market value has been obtained by considering the sale consideration of the
similar properties. Under this method average rate has been obtained from various sale instances for similar properties after adjusting various positive
and negative factors associated with the property under valuation. For constructed properties depreciation market rate is taken for valuation.



Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 5 - Intangible assets as at March 31, 2022

Computer software Total
Deemed cost
Opening balance 26.50 26.50
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing balance 26.50 26.50
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 26.50 26.50
Charge during the year - -
Disposals ' - -
Closing balance 26.50 26.50
Net block - -
Intangible assets as at March 31, 2021
Computer software Total
Deemed cost
Opening balance 26.50 26.50
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing balance 26.50 26.50
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 25.13 25.13
Charge during the year 1.37 1.37
Disposals - -
Closing balance 26.50 26.50
Net block - -

D



Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are In rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 6
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-Current, Non-Current Current Current
Investment in associate
Investments at cost
Investment in equity instruments {unquoted)
2,20,00,000 {(March 31, 2021: 2,20,00,000) equity shares of 2,500.00 2,500.00 - -
% 11.36 each in Calista Properties Private Limited
Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Investments In mutual fund
Investment in Mutual funds * - - 70.01 580.38
Total i 2,500.00 2,500.00 70.01 580.38|
Aggregated book value of unguoted investments 2,500.00 2,500.00 - -
Aggregated market value of unquoted investments - - 70.01 580.38
Note 7 - Loans
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-Current| Non-Current Current Current
At fair value through profit and loss
Unsecured, considered good
Inter-corporate deposit repayable on demand
- to related parties - 94.00 288.00
- to others - 5,287.00 5,287.00
Total Loans - - 5,381.00 5,575.00
As at March 31, 2022
Amount of loan or Percentage to the total
Type of Borrower advance in the nature |Loans and Advances In
of loan outstanding the nature of loans
Promoter - -
Directors - -
KMPs -
Related Parties 94.00 1.75%
As at March 31, 2021
Amount of loan or Percentage to the total
Type of Borrower advance in the nature |Loans and Advances in
of loan outstanding the nature of loans
Promoter -
Directors - -
KMPs - -
Related Parties 288.00 5.17%
Note 8 - Other financial assets
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current Non-current Current Current
At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposit 102.30 102.30 E
Unsecured, considered good
Deposits with bank with remaining maturity period for more 115.38 102.16 -
than 12 months (refer below note)
217.68 204.46 - -]
Others
At amortised cost
Interest accrued - - 4,219.58 3,711.65
- - 4,219.58 3,711.65
Total other financial assets 217.68 204.46 4,219.58 3,711.65

Includes deposit amounting to Rs. 83.00 lacs kept as DSRA with the bank {March 31, 2021: Rs. 83.00 lacs given as security against guarantee issued by bank).

Note 9 - Income tax assets (net)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-current| Non-current Current| Current

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 388.93 222.99 - -
Total income tax assets (net) 388.93 222.99 - -




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 10 - Deferred tax assets {net) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets (refer note 23) 183.98 213.09
Deferred tax {net) 183.98 213.09
Net deferred tax assets to be carried to balance sheet 183.98 213.09
Note 11 - Other assets
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current Non-current Current Current
Unbilled revenue 1.43 - 61.43 5.57
1.43 - 61.43 5.57
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good - - 166.64 91.16
Credit impaired - 24.24 24.24
- - 190.88 115.40
Less: Impairment allowance 24.24 24.24
- - 166.64 91.16
Other advances
Prepaid expenses 6.99 9.69 21.64] 14.81
Balances with government authorities - - 1.40 5.51
Advances given to employees - - 3.79 1.14]
6.99 9.69 26.83 21.46/
Total other assets 8.42 969 254.90 113.19|
Note 12 - Inventories (valued at lower of cost and NRV) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Food, beverages and other supplies 37.63 35.77
Total inventories 37.63 35.77
Note 13 - Trade receivables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured, considered good 4245 37.23
Unsecured, considered good 109.99 77.97
Credit impaired 89.96 89.13
24240 204.33
Less : Allowance for credit impaired 89.96 89.13
Total Trade receivables 152.44 115.20
For transactions with other related parties, refer note no. 34.
Trade receivable agelng as at March 31, 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1 year - 2 year 2 year - 3|More than 3
year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 9.00 121.73 0.01 8.14 - 13.56 152.44
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in - - - . -
{iii) U d Trade ivables —credit impaired B 179 0.00 0.01 0.72 87.44 89.96
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade Recelvables — which have significant increase in credit - - - - - - -
risk
(Vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 9.00 123.52 0.01 8.15 0.72 101.01 242.40
Trade receivable ageing as at March 31, 2021
Particulars OQutstanding for following perlods from due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1year - 2 year 2 year - 3|More than 3
year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 88.22 8.97 4.78 1.24 11.99 115.20
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant Increase in - - - - -
credit risk
(iii) Undisp i Trade ivahles —credit impaired - 0.96 0.00 0.01 0.72 87.44 89.13
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - - - . -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit - - - - -
risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total - 89.18 8.97 4.79 1.95 99.43 204.33
Note 14 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 385.63 86.37
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 7220 82.29
Cash on hand 2.28 2.65
460.11 171.31
includes deposit amounting to Rs. 72,20 lacs {March 31, 2021 of Rs.69.99 lacs) given as security against guarantee issued by bank. / —
/ P
y.
/ /




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

For the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balances with banks:
— On current accounts 385.63 86.37
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 72.20 82.29
~Cash on hand 2.28 2.65/
Total cash and cash equivalents 460.11 17131
Changes In liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars April 1, 2021 Cash flows C in fair value March 31, 2022
Non- current borrowings 9,701.36 {239.10) - 9,462.26
Total liabilities from financing activities 9,701.36 {239.10} - 9,462.26
April 1, 2020 Cash flaws Changes In fair value March 31, 2021
Non- current borrowings 9,467.37 233.99 - 9,701.36
Totat liabilities from financing actlvities 9,467.37 233.99 - 9,701.36
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receivables - - 152.44 115.20
Cash and bank balances - - 460.11 171.31
Other financial assets 217.68 204.46 4,219.58 3,711.65
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 217.68 204.46 4,832.13 3,998.16




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 15 - Equity share capital

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Authorised shares
1,10,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 1,10,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
1,02,04,000 (March 31, 2021: 1,02,04,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

1,100.00 1,100.00
1,020.40 1,020.40
1,020.40 1,020.40

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
There is no movement in the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

{b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company has
not declared any dividend during the current and previous years.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited, the ultimate holding company 645.40 645.40
64,54,000 (March 31, 2021: 64,54,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. % holding No. % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25% 64,54,000 63.25%
Mr. Atul 1. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% 12,50,000 12.25%
Mr. Sagar |. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% 12,50,000 12.25%
Mr. Abhay J. Chordia* - 0.00% 12,50,000 12.25%
(e) Shareholding of promoters
As at March 31, 2022
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during
the
year
S.No Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares
1|Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25% -
2|Mr. Atul . Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% -
3|Mr. Sagar I. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% -
4|Ms. Meena Chordia 4,16,666 4.08% -
5|Ms. Yashika Shah 4,16,667 4.08% -
6|Mr. Yash Chordia 4,16,667 4,08% -
Total 1,02,04,000 100%
As at March 31, 2021
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during
the
year
S. No Promoter name No. of Shares | % of total shares
1|Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25% -
2|Mr. Atul I. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% -
3|Mr. Sagar |. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% -
4[Mr. Abhay J. Chordia* 12,50,000 12.25% -
Total 1,02,04,000 100% /e 5

f / \

The shareholding information has been extracted from the records of the Company including register of shareholders / members and is based on the leéal ownership/df ;
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Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

3|Mr. Sagar I. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% -
4|Mr. Abhay J. Chordia* 12,50,000 12.25% -
Total 1,02,04,000 100%

The shareholding information has been extracted from the records of the Company including register of shareholders / members and is based on the legal ownership of
shares.




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 - Other equity March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Securities premium*

Balance as per the last financial statements 6,471.98 6,471.98

Closing balance 6,471.98 6,471.98

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the last financial statements 2,013.29 2,271.51
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases (net of deferred tax) - -
(refer note 39)

Profit for the year 232.15 (268.18)
Other comprehensive income 0.01 9.96
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 2,245.45 2,013.29
Total other equity 8,717.43 8,485.27

*Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 - Borrowings {Non-current)

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current portion| Non-current portion Current maturities Current maturities|
Term loans
Indian rupee loan 3 (secured) 2,275.49 2,845.35 569.86 569.41
Indian rupee loan 4 {secured) 6,004.76| 5,893.92] 612.15 392.68
8,280.25 8,739.27 1,182.01 962.09
The above amount Includes
Secured borrowings 8,280.25 8,739.27 1,182.01 962.09
Unsecured borrowings -| -
Total Borrowings 8,280.25 8,739.27 1,182.01 962.09

Notes:
Indian Rupee Loan 3 & 4

The term loans are secured by equitable mortgage on the property located - all piece & parcel of the land (plot A & B) bearing 5.No. 19 (part) & S.No. 20/1to
20/6/1, 20/1 to 20/9 (part), totally admeasuring 23,266 sq. mtr along with all present structure known as "Panchshil Techpark and "Courtyard Marriott™ and any

okl

future construction with or future

ilable FSI/TDR thereon at village Hinjewadi, Hinjewadi Road, within the limits of PCMC, Taluka Haveli,

District-Pune. The loan is further secured by stock and future receivables from Courtyard Marriott and Panchshil Techpark. The loan is further hypothecated and

bl

escrow by any present and future rent or any other r

ing to the C

operations at Hinjewadi and Panchshil Techpark; and personal guarantee of director Mr. Atul Chordia.

from the operations at the hotel and from commercial

The Indian rupee loan 3 is repayable in 84 equal monthly installments of Rs. 47,61,905 starting from July 21, 2019 along with interest rate of MCLR + 30bps with
annual reset, the interest rate is 7.50% per annum {March 31, 2021: 9%).

The Indian rupee loan 4 is repayable in 132 unequal monthly installments ranging between Rs. 28,57,021 to Rs. 74,94,929 starting from July 21, 2018 along with
interest rate of MCLR + 80 bps with annual reset, the interest rate is 8 % per annum (March 31, 2021: 9.5%}.

Note 18 - Other financial liabilities

March 31, 2022/ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-Current Non-Current Current Current
Security deposits 56.24 5.89 253.17 417.51
Employee related liabilities -] 42.40 48.77
Retention money - 0.30
Interest accrued - 105.19 104.16
Total financial liabilities 56.24 5.89 401.06 570.44
Note 19 - Trade payables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 12.14 50.26
enterprises (refer note 36)
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 869.00 76134
enterprises and small enterprises
Total trade pay 881.14 811.60
Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2022
Particulars llowing perlods fromdue date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 1-2 2-3 More than 3 [Total
year years years years
{i)MSME = - 10.59 - 1.05 0.51 12.14
(il)Others E 171.83 387.31 136.51 143.10 30.18 869.00
Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total - 171.89 397.90 13651 144.15 30.69 881.14
Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2021
Particulars llowing periods fromdue date of
Unbilled Not due Lessthan 1 12 2-3 More than 3 |Total
year years years years
(i)MSME 2 -] 7.60 8.87 2.50 0.14 19.11
(ifjothers | 88.05 238.09 324.75 56.73 84.86 792.49
|(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total - 88.05 245.69 333.62 59.23 85.00 811.60
,/_ L.\
/ \
( \
\




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private ited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 20 - Other liabilities

March 31, 2022/ March 31, 2021
Current Current!
Advance from customers (Contract liabilities) 54.38 50.88
Others
TD5 and other statutory dues payable 8.37 4.66)
Value added tax and works contract tax payable 871 127
Goods and services tax payable 38.86 -
Employee related liabilities 5.44 452
Other liabilities 13.70 16.34
129.46 77.67
Note 21 - Deferred revenue
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non current Non current Current Current|
Deferred revenue 19.47 - 5.10 344
Total deferred revenue 19.47 - 5.10! 3.44
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As at April 01 3.44 8.34
Deferred during the year 24.42 4.90
Released to the statement of profit and loss 3.29 9.80
As at March 31 24.57 3.44
Note 22 - Provisit
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non current Non current Current Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment 1.60 1.40 1.35 1.27
Provision for gratuity 24.22 18.01 4.85 3.34
Total provisions 25.82 19.41 6.20 4.61
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:
St of profit and loss section
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current income tax:
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 29.10 (42.13)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 29.10 (42.13)
OCl section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year: 0.01 3.35
0.01 335
Total tax exp 29.11 (38.78)
Reconciliation of tax exp and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accounting profit before tax 261.25 (31031}
Computed tax expense
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2021: 25.17%) 65.75 (78.10}
Current income tax charge
Adjustments for:
Expenses deduction of which is not allowed under Income Tax Act -
Adjustment of tax related to earlier periods -
Permanent differences on account of Ind AS adjustménts 15.64]
Interest on incame tax - -
Ajustment related to House Property Expense {7.53} 12.51
Tax rate difference -
Others {29.11) 1117
At the effective Income tax rate of 24.67% [March 31, 2021: 24.67%]
Incame tax expense reported in the st of profit and loss 29.11 (38.78)




wadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax relates to the following
I

Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss Statement of changes in OCI
March 31
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 2021'.
Differences in depreciation in block of fixed assets as per tax books 120.01 102.27 17.75 35.40 -
and financial books
Expenditure charged to the statement of prafit and loss in the 17.89 18.02 (0.13} (1.93) 0.01 3.35
current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis
Fair valuation of investments - - - - -
Unbilled revenue {0.48} {0.58) 0.11 211 - -
Tax Losses 2391 70.95 {47.04) {70.95)
Provision for doubtful debts 22.64 2243 0.21 {3.41) - -
Net deferred tax expense/(income) - - {29.11) {38.77) 0.01 3.35
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 183.98 213.08
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax liability {0.48) {0.58)
Deferred tax assets 184.45 213.67
Deferred tax assets (net) 183.98 213.08
The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
{ /
\ \
\ \
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Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 23 - Revenue from operations March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Revenue from rental income 979.67 1,091.80
B. Revenue from contract with customers

1. Services transferred over time
From hotel operations
Room income 814.25 217.70
Other hotel services including banquet income and 51.85 5.97
membership fees
866.10 223.67
Il. Goods transferred at a point in time
From commercial leasing
From Sale of construction materials
Scrap sale 41.19 0.81
From hotel operations
Sale of food and beverages 717.30 274.37
758.49 275.18
Total revenue from contract with customers 1,624.59 498.85
Revenue from operations (net) 2,604.26 1,590.65

Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit & loss with the contracted price

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue as per contracted price 1,624.59 498.85
Adjustments
Discounts - -
Revenue from contract with customers 1,624.59 498.85
Note 24 - Other income March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 10.50 11.89
- on inter corporate deposit 557.39 690.26
- Others 4.33 4,74
572.22 706.89
Other non operating income
Profit on sale of fixed assets - 3.50
Profit on sale of investments 8.56 0.01
8.56 3.51
Other rental income 26.30 -
Fair value gain on investments - 0.40
Miscellaneous income 1.81 40.75
28.11 41.15
608.89 751.55




Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in rupees lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note 25 - Cost of sales March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cost of food and beverages consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 35.77 43.85
Add: purchases 210.99 103.04
246.76 146.89
Less: inventory at the end of the year 37.63 35.77
Cost of food and beverages consumed 209.13 111.12
Total cost of sales 209.13 111.12
Note 26 - Employee benefit expenses March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 472.25 295.26
Contribution to provident and other funds 23.39 18.87
Gratuity expenses (refer note 33) 8.72 12.45
Staff welfare expenses 55.28 54.75
559.64 381.33
Note 27 - Other expenses March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Power, fuel and light 254.37 228.53
254.37 228.53
Rates and taxes 55.61 33.90
Insurance charges 13.64 25.10
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 151.11 92.14
Buildings 44.76 84.18
Vehicle 2.94 4.19
Transport charges 6.15 8.21
Advertising and sales promotion 76.61 53.30
Brokerage - 33.65
Travelling and conveyance 3.98 0.82
Printing and stationery 7.77 10.00
Legal and professional fees 77.50 76.77
Linen, laundry and cleaning 53.05 31.65
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies 29.94 20.84
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 27.01 below) 4.08 4.29
Other incidental activity expenses (net) 35.35 42.98
Asset management charges 19.39 21.53
Management fees 18.92 5.10
Royalty 31.63 10.52
Security expenses 10.72 3.19
Provision for doubtful receivable/advance 0.83 -
Loss on property, plant and equipment discarded - 0.16
Exchange loss (net) 13.54 1.38
CSR expenses (refer note 27.02 below) 9.72 18.25
Donation - 0.40
Miscellaneous expenses _ 46.02 57.37
\ v 967.63 868.45
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Note 27.01 Auditors’ remuneration

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As auditor:
- Audit fee 4.00 4.27
Reimbursement of expenses 0.08 0.02
4.08 4.29

Note 27.02- CSR expenses

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR)} committee has been formed by
the Company. The areas for CSR activities are the activities mentioned in the Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013.
Amount spent during the year on activities which are specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 are as

mentioned below :

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(a} Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 9.72 18.22
{b) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year 9.72 18.25
{c) shortfall at the end of the year, - -
(d) total of previous years shortfall, - -
{e) reason for shortfall, NA NA

{f) nature of CSR activities,

{g) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per
relevant Accounting Standard,

Educational & medical
expenses

Contribution to
Panchshil Foundation
charitable trust

Educational & medical
expenses

Contribution to
Panchshil Foundation
charitable trust

Note 28 - Depreciation and amortisation expense March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 306.53 352.74
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 4) 129.64 131.88
Amortisation of intangible assets {refer note 5) - 137
Less: depreciation on assets relating to other incidental activity (1.48) (1.72)

434.69 484.27

Note 29 - Finance costs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest expenses
- on bank facilities 772.57 797.64
- on inter corporate deposit - 1
- financial instruments at amortised cost 4.02 4.98
- on others 0.11 0.42

776.70 803.04
776.70 803.04
Other borrowing costs
Loan processing fees 4.01 4.01
Bank charges 0.10 0.29
4.11 4.30
Less: attributable to the qualifying assets - o
4.11 4.30
Total finance cost 780.81 807.34
Note 30, Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net profit after tax 232.16 (258.22)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of basic 102.04 102.04
and diluted EPS (number in lacs)
Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of 10 each (in Rs.) 2.28 (2.53)
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Notes 1 the financlal statements for the year anded March 31, 2022
{All amounts are In rupees lacs unless otharwise stated)

32 Disclosure pursuant to Employes benefits

A. Defined benafit plans:

Provision for gratuity
Total

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
29.07 2134
29.07 21.34

The Company has defined benefit gratuity which is non funded.

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of sarvice is enttled to specific benefit. The leve! of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at

retirement age.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratulty plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed t least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each campleted year of service. The scheme is

non-funded.

March 31, 2022 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets

Gratui profitand loss In other Income
01-Apr-21 Service cost Net Interest expense  Sub-total included In Benefit paid Return on plan Actuarial changes Experience Sub-totai Includedt  Contsibutions by March 31, 2022
statemant of profit assets (excluding arising from changes  adjustments inoal employer
and loss amounts Included in infinanclal
net interest assumptions
expanse)

Gratuity

Defined henefit obligation 21.34 2.61 111 872 (173) 2.76 (2.08) 073 - 23.07

Fair value of plan assets - - - - - a =
Benefit liability 2134 7.61 111 8.7n {1.73) 2.76 {2.04) 073 29.07
Total banafit liabllity 2134 7.61 111 872 {1.73) - 276 {2.08) 0.73 - 29.07
March 31, 2021 : Changes in defined benefit abligation and plan assets.

& to and loss /| In other income
01-Apr-20 Service cost Net interestexpense  Sub-total Included in Bensfit paid Return on plan Actuarial changes Experience Sub-total included Contributions by March 31, 2021
statemaent of prafit assets {excluding arising fram changes  adjustments moc smploysr
and loss amounts included in in ftnancial
net interest assumptions
expense)

Gratulty

Defined benefit obligation 2345 1101 148 1245 (1.28) me7) {1281} (1332] 2134

Fail wnluie of pian ssets =
Benefit fiabllity 23.45 11.01 1.4 1245 1124) [0.87) (11.81) {13.32) 2134
Total henefit liability — 11.01 1.44 12.45 12.24) - {0.37) (11.31) {13.32) = 21.34
The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended Mavch 31, 2021

Particulars
Discount rate 5.80% 5.40%
Future salary increase 10.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 30.00% 29.00%

Mortality Rate Ouring Employment

|ALM {2012-14) ult

|AUM {2012-14] ult

A quantitative sensitivity analysk for signiflcant assumption is as shown below:
Gratuity

(increase) / decreasa in defined benefit obligation (impact)
Particulars SeNTTy Jeva) Y March 31,2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
Rs. Rs.
Discount rate 1% increase (0.95) (0,65}
1% decrease 1.03 an
Future salary Increase 1% increase 071 050
1% decrease (0.67) {0.45)
Withdrawal rate 1% increase 0.14 020
1% decrease {0.13) {0.00)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a methad that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The followings are the expected future henefit payments for the defined benefit plan :

Year unded March 31, 2022 Year anded March 31, 2021

Particulars
R3. Rs.
Within the next 12 months {next annual raporting pericd) 435 3.34
Batween 2 and 5 years 2078 14.37
Beyond 5 years 23.38 14.42
Total expected payments 49.01 3213

Waighted average duration of defined plan abligation (based on discounted cash flows)

Year ended March 31, 2022 Yaar andad March 31, 2021

Particulars
Yaars Years
Gratuity 5.36 495
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33 Commitments and contingencles
a, Leases
Operating leass commitments: where the Company is the lessor

The Company has leased out its commercial space along with interior flts- outs such as furniture and fixture, alr-conditioners etc. on operating lease. The
non-cancellable lease term varies according to each rent sgreement but Is generally between 1-5 years. There are na restrictions Imposed by the lease

agresment.
Future minimum rantals undar leases are, as follows:*
[Particulars March 31, 2022] March 31, 2021
| Within one year 369.97 10613
After one year but not more than five years 73453 836
Above 5 years =

b, Capital and othar commitments
There are no capital and other commitments as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Nil}.
¢ Contingent liabllitles
There are no contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2022 [March 31, 2021: Nil].
34 Ralated Party Disclosures

{i)  Namues of ralated parties and related party relationship

A. Related parties where contro! exists
Holding company | Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited
Fellow subsidlary/Subsidary of Holding Company Panchshit Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
N Mr. Atul Chordia
Key Managerial Personnel M Sagar Chordia
ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Enterprise in which director is director ar member or his relative is Panchshi Corporate Park Private Limited
director or member in the Company, LLP or firm Panchshil Foundation
|A22 Online Services Private Limited
{l}  Transactions during the year:
Particulars Year anded Yaar ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Reimbursement recaived
ICC Realty (India) Private Limited 213, 1.28
.Panr.hshl Corporate Park Private Limited 1222 1.07
Intarest Income
A2Z Online Services Privata Limited 28.69) 55.82
ICD refunds
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 184,00 225.00
Servicas rendared
Panchshi Corperata Park Private Limited 12.05 N
ICC Realty {India) Private Limited 6.81 21.31
Assat management charges
A22 Online Services Private Limited 1839 21.53]
Reimbursement of expenses
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 0.02
Fanchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 2.59)
Corporate Soclal Responsibllity expanses
Panchshil Foundation 9.72| 18.25
charges
A2Z Online Services Private Limited . 33.65
{iii} Balance outstanding:
Particulars Asat As ot
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest receivable
A22 Online Services Private Limited 761.61 735.79
CD Glven
A2Z Online Serviees Private Limited 94.00 288.00
Recelvables
1€C Realty (India} Private Limited 222 43,23
Panchshi Corporate Park Private Limited 048 0.61
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 0.75 -
Payables
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 25.47, 3.63]
1CC Realty (india) Private limited 10,70 0.05
L

Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Li
nded March 31, 2022
(All amounts in rupees Iacs unless otherwisa stated)

35 Datalls of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006
The amounts that needs to be disclosed pertaining to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006}
are disclosed below:

As at March 31, 2022, Rs. 12,14 lacs {March 31, 2021: Rs. 50.26 lacs) was outstanding to the vendors having their status as Micro or Small enterprises or its registration with the
appropriate authority under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006", And the interest payable to them as par section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 is Rs.
2.36 lacs {March 31, 2021: Rs. 0.61 lacs).

| Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1. Fellowing are remalning unpaid to any suppller at the end of each accounting year
{a) The principal amount 12.14 50.26
{b) The interest due thereon - .
2. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Madium - -
ises D Act, 2006 {27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

3. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which has .36 204
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

4. The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -

5. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, untit 236 061
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, far the purpose
of dit ofa iture under sectlon 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
|Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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6

Fair values

Set out below is @ comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments as of March 31, 2022

Particulars Amortised Cost Financial Financial assets/liabilities Total carrying value Total fair value
assets/liabilities at fair | at fair vatue through OC1
value through profit and
loss

Financial assets

Investments - 70.01 - 70.01 70.01
Loans 5,381.00 - - 5,381.00 5,381.00
Trade and other receivables 152.44 - - 152.44 152.44
Cash and cash equivalents 460.11 - - 460.11 460.11
Other financial assets 4,437.26 - - 4,437.26 4,437.26
Total 10,430.81 70.01 - 10,500.82 10,500.82
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 8,280.25 - 8,280.25 8,280.25
Trade and other payables 881.14 - - 881.14 881.14
Other financial liabilities 457.30 - - 457.30 457.30
Total 9,618.70 - - 9,618.70 9,618.70

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s fi

nancial instruments as of March 31, 2021

Particulars Amortised Cost Financial Financial assets/liabilities Total carrying value Total fair value
assets/liabilities at fair | at fair value through OCI
value through profit and
loss

Financial assets
Investments - 580.38 - 580.38 580.38
Loans 5,677.30 - - 5,677.30 5,677.30
Trade and other receivables 115.20 - - 115.20 115.20
Cash and cash equivalents 171.31 - - 171.31 17131
Other financial assets 3,813.81 - - 3,813.81 3,813.81
Total 9,777.62 580.38 - 10,358.00 10,358.00
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 8,739.27 - 8,739.27 8,739.27
Trade and other payables 811.60 - - 811.60 811.60
Other financial liabilities 1,538.42 - - 1,538.42 1,538.42
Total 11,089.29 - - 11,089.29 11,089.29

The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Investment in mutual funds

The fair value of investments in mutual funds is derived from the NAV of the respective units at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the falr value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value after initial recognition:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurernent hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022:

Date of valuation

Fair value

ement using

Quoted prices in active

Significant observable inputs

Significant unobservable

Total .
markets {Level 1) {Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Investrents in units of mutual funds March 31 2022 70.01 - 70.01
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31 2022 12,465.00 - - 12,465.00

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021:

Date of valuation

Total

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in active

Significant observable inputs

Significant unobservable

markets (Level 1) {Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Investments in units of mutual funds March 31 2021 580.38 - 580.38
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31 2021 11,985.00 - 11,985.00

There were no transfers between level 1 during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

W
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37 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables and borrowings . The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets includes trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include barrowings and investments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed-to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant as at March 31, 2022 and March 31,
2021.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected the Company profit before tax is affected through
the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase / decrease in | Effect on profit before
basls points tax
March 31, 2022
INR +50 (49.88)
-50 49,88
March 31, 2021
INR +50 (65.43)
-50 65.43

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in
foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's aperating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) .

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Change in USD rate March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
usD +5% (0.23) (10.38)
-5% 0.23 10.38

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, if any, and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer and the segment in which it works.

In case of real estate business, customer credit risk is r d by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. For the fixed lease income,

the billing is done in advance i.e. at the beginning of the month and for variable lease rent and other maintenance charges, the credit period provided is 10 days. Thus there are no major trade
receivable balances outstanding at the year end. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 13.

In case of hospitality business, credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a trade receivable or a group of trade receivables is impaired. The Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction and which are due for more than six months. The expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses or atan
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The Company uses a practical expedient by computing
the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix.
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Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company's trade receivables using provision matrix relating to the hospitality business:

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Not due Within 120 days * More than 120 days * |Total

ECL rate 0% 0% 100%

Estimated total gross carrying amount - 132.52 109.88 242.40
ECL - Simplified approach - - (89.96) (89.96)
Net carrying amount - 132.52 19.92 152.44
As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Not due Within 120 days * More than 120 days * |Total

ECL rate 0% 0% 100%

Estimated total gross carrying amount - 79.24 125.09 204.33
ECL - Simplified approach - - {89.13} (89.13)
Net carrying amount - 79.24 35.96 115.20

* provision is made for receivables where recovery is considered doubtful irrespective of the due date. Where an amount is outstanding for more than 365 days the Company usually provides for the
same unless there is clear visibility of recovery.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s management in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made with
banks in terms of fixed deposits and in mutual funds. Credit risk on cash deposits is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's finance department is responsible for liquidity,
funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and polices related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position
on a monthly and quarterly basis through its senior management meeting and board meetings. They use rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The senior management ensures that the future cash flow needs are met through cash flow from the operating activities and short term borrowings from banks.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars On demand Within 3 months 3-12 manths 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings - 288.67 893.33 5,729.77 2,550.49 9,462.26
Security deposit 253.17 - - 56.24 - 309.41
Trade Payables - - 569.79 311.35 - 881.14
Other financial liabilities 70.74 77.15 - - - 147.89
Total 323.91 365.83 1,463.12 6,097.36 2,550.49 10,800.70
As at March 31, 2021

Barrowings - 238.05 724.05 4,115.36 4,623.90 9,701.36
Security deposit 41751 - - 5.89 - 423.40
Trade Payables - - 333.75 477.85 - 811.60
Other financial liabilities 70.74 82.19 - - - 152.93
Total 488.25 320.25 1,057.80 4,599.10 4,623.90 | 11,089.29

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors the capital using gearing ratio. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings net off cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Loans and borrowings (note 17) 9,567.45 9,805.52
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 14) 460.11 171.31
Net debt 9,107.34 9,634.21
Equity share capital (Note 15) 1,020.40 1,020.40
Other equity (Note 16) 8,717.43 8,485.27
Total capital 9,737.83 9,505.67
Capital and net debt 18,845.17 19,139.88
Gearing ratio 48% 50%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

fiae it lh A
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Note 38, Management's assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on Company's operations

The management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the company's operations, financial performance and position as at and for the quarter &
year ended March 31, 2022, in making the assessment management has considered the recoverability of trade receivables and other assets and also considered the
external and internal information available up to the date of approval of these financial results including status of existing and future customers, cash flow projections
etc and concluded that there is no significant impact which is required to be recognized in the financial results. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to the

financial statement.

Note 39. Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
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40, Benaml Propertles Note
The Company da nat have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been inklated or pending agalnst the Company for holding any Benami property.

41, Relationship with Stuck off companles.

Name of struck off Campany [Nature of | Batance i with
with struck-off Company the Struck off
| company, if sny,
| to be disclosed

- I

= i
&2, Ratlos

|Particulars Numerstor 1 AsMarch31,2022 | As March 31,2021 % Tnratio | Remarks ]
{a) Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 406 | 424 —4%| The variance is below 25%, thus, reasans is not
- required

(b} Debt-equity ratio Total Debt [ sharenolders Equity 097 102 5%) The variance ks helow 25%, thus, reasons is not
required

(<) Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service | Debt service = Interest & 083 060 39% Increase In Net profit in FY 21-22 as compared to

= Net profit after taxes + |Lease Payments + FY 2021 ta FY 20-21 net profit was affected due

Non-cash operating Principal Repayments to Covid 12 lock down restrictions , operations

expenses H were scaled down in FY 20-21 in compliance with
reguiatory guidelines.

(d) Retum on equity ratio Nt Profits after taxes — | Average Shareholder's 0.02 003 “187%|increase In Net profit in FY 21.22 as compared to.

Preference Dlvidend | Equity £¥20-21.. In FY 20-21 net profit was affected due
to Covid 19 lock dowa restrictions , operations
led down In FY 2021 In iance with
regulatory guidelines.

(e) Inventory turnover ratia Cost of goods sold Average Inventary 50| 279 104%| Increase in sales In FY 21-22 a5 compared to FY
20-21. In FY 20-21 net profit was affected due to
Covid 19 lack down restrictions , operations were
scaled down in FY 20-21 in compliance with

| regulatory guidelines.

{f) Trade receivables turnover ratio Net credit sales = Gross | Average Trade Receivable 17.08 13.81 24%| The variance is below 25%, thus, raasons is not

credit sales - sales return required

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases= | Average Trade Payables 134 1.20 125%| The variance is below 25%, thus, reasons is not

Gross credit purchases - required
purchase retum -

() Net capital turmover ratio Net sales = Total sales - | Working capital = Cumvent 033 0.20 62%|increase in sales in FY 2122 ax compared to FY

sales raturn assets - Current liabilities 20-21. In FY 20-21 net profit was affected due to
Covid 19 lock dowa restrictions, aperations were
scaled down In FY 20-21 In campliance with
| regulatory guidelines.
(i} Net profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - 009 -0.16 -155% Increase in Net profit In FY 21-22 as compared to
sales return FY 20-21. In F¥ 20-21 net profit was affected due
to Covid 13 lock down restrictions , operations
were scaled down in FY 20-21 in compliance with
regulatory guidelines.
(i) Return on capital emplayed Eamings before interest | Capital Employed = 004 001 299%|Increase In Net profit In FY 21-22 as compared to
and taxes Tangible Net Worth + FY 20-21 . I FY 20-21 net profit was affected due
Total Debt + Deferred Tax ta Covid 19 lock down restrictions , operations
Uiahbility were scaled down in €Y 20-21 in compliance with
regulatory guidelines.

(K} Return on investment Profit hefore tax Average Net worth 0.03 0.03 -184%| Increase in Net profit in FY 21-22 as compared to
FY 20-21. In FY 20-21 net profit was affected due
to Covid 19 lock down restrictions , operations

|weve scated down in Y 20-21 in compliance with
regulatory guidelines.
|

3. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currancy or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

44, The Code on Social Security 2020 {“the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during th and post has received assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette
of tndia. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has seleased draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020, However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is vet to be notified and rules far
quantifying the financial impact are also nat yet issued.

The Company will assess the Impact of the Code and will give iate impact in the financi In the period in which, the Cade becomes effective and the refated rules to determine the financiat Impact are published.

45. Previous year flgures

Previous year have been where necessary to confirm ta this year's dassification.

46, The company is not required to file any quarterly returns or statements od current assets with banks or financiaj institutions.

47, The management conflrms that the company is not declared as wilful defauiter {as defined by RBI Clrcular] by any Bank or Financial institutian of other lender.

48, The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on aumber of Layers) Rules, 2017.
46, The company does net have any charges or satisfaction which Is yt 1o be reglstered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

50. Undliclosed Income

The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which is not recorded in the books of accaunt that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

5L Loans and advances

the
ate Benefldaries} or

(i) The Company has not advanced or laaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or eatity{ies), indluding forelgn entiti wil
{a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or eatities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ul
{b)  provide any guarantes, security or the llke to or on behatf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} The Company has not seceived any fund from any person(s) or entityfies}, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recarded In writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities (dentified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Party (Uhimate Beneficiaries) or
(k) provide any guarantee, security or the lika on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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